SHEPHERDSTOWN HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Monday, January 5, 2026
6:00 p.m.
TOWN HALL

104 NORTH KING STREET, SHEPHERDSTOWN
Join Zoom

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86067120451?pwd=fWNLscmYpiOmof8Pknlig4doZKNXa8i.1

Meeting ID: 860 6712 0451

Passcode: 818383

Call to Order:

Approval of Previous Months' Minutes: December 8, 2025

Visitors:

Conflicts of Interest:

Applications:

25-40 - 101 West German Street
Sign Permit Application — Business Sign above the front door

Workshop Sessions:
None

Ongoing Business:
a. Update and feedback on Mills Group materials

New Business:
a.

Adjournment:


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86067120451?pwd=fWNLscmYpiOmof8PknIig4oZKNXa8i.1

SHEPHERDSTOWN HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION
Monday, December 8, 2025
6:00 p.m.,
TOWN HALL
104 NORTH KING STREET

In attendance: Commissioner Chair Keith Alexander (KA), Commissioner Tom Mayes (TM),
Commissioner Cheryl Brown (CB), Commissioner Ashley Reynolds (AR), Commissioner
Rebecca Bicker (RB), Town Administrator Gino Sisco, Intern Tabatha Delphi, Mayor James
Gatz (JG).

In absentia: None noted.

In audience: Jim Auxer (JA), Brannon Hamilton (contractor) (BH), Paul Farrell (211 E High),
Michael Nickerson (MN), Stephanie Unger.

1.

Call to Order: KA called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., made introductions of
commissioners, made introduction of new historic preservation intern, and explained
Roberts Rules Simplified.

Approval of Minutes: No changes noted, minutes approved as submitted.
Visitors:

Conflicts of Interest: None noted.

Applications:

25-38- 211 E High Street Renovations
Homeowner discussed project plan. Plan is to replace fencing and building shutters.

- Exterior Work- CB inquired about if the shutters are original to the building. BH
notes that the existing shutters are not but are so old that they are unrepairable.
TM inquired if they will be replaced in-kind with wood. BH says that the only
modification will be to lengthen the upper shutter, which do not currently fit
window length. KA moved to approve replacement of existing shutters in
accordance with Guidelines on PG 48 “Shutters”, Sections A-D. All in favor.
None opposed. Passed.

- Fence Permit Application- BH described the fence as semi-temporary, with the
proposed replacement 5’ tall, black aluminum, and 2”°x2” posts. KA noted the
necessity of considering the relative dimensions to the adjoining property. CB
asked about visibility between properties. BH noted that wooden fences are
visible against property, noted lack of cast metal availability for fencing. AR
noted that the interior and side placement of fence will have less impact on
historic integrity. TM inquired about height of fence, noting that zoning limits
fencing over 4’, raised issue of cast metal substitution. BH noted difficulties for




fence installation on specific terrain of 211 E High Street. JA recommended a
local blacksmith for the project. KA recommends that the commission considers
approving a recommendation to the planning commission that the homeowners
explore cast iron over proposed aluminum, as a preliminary step. TM raises wood
as an alternative, compatible with adjoining property. BH noted the need for
timely work but said that he will do further research. CB noted that the black
aluminum keeps visibility of adjoining mill property, more than wood. TM
inquired about the longevity and acceptability of proposed fence. BH noted that
the proposed fence is in use on historic properties elsewhere. Homeowner
inquired on whether the fence was in question or a specific side. KA confirmed
that the public-facing side was the priority. TM moved to recommend to the

planning commission that the installation of a 5° aluminum fence would not be
appropriate at this location and4nvited-the-contractorto-consult-withanother

gualified-fenee builderintown (as amended). AR asked for confirmation of
timeline. Homeowner notes proposed cast iron as prohibitively expensive. KA
notes that the priority is the proposed height and materials. BH confirms
feasibility of newly proposed height. KA proposes that TM rephrase his motion
based on newly proposed height. TM notes the importance of material continuity.
CB proposes that a temporary fence be installed until permanent change is made.
BH rejects feasibility of project, considering available labor and expense. CB
seconded motion by TM. All in favor. None opposed. Passed.

25-39 — 104 West New Street Shepherd Burial Ground Renovations

Representative from Historic Shepherdstown discussed the current project plan. Plan
is to renovate iron gate (gate and hinge, not posts) and stone foundation including
stone steps.

a. Gate renovation. KA inquires on visible impact of proposed solution. MN states

that none would be visible, other than an increased gap between gate doors which
would be necessary for function and for prohibiting further deterioration. TM
thanked MN for his continued commitment to the property, expressed concern on
cutting into the original materials of the gate, noted hinge is original, suggested
that a supportive base be inserted instead. MN stated that the proposed solution is
the most feasible, as other options are not cost-effective and would put strain on
contributing materials. MN noted the longevity of proposed solution. TM inquired
about stone step support, noted that proposed work on steps might alleviate strain
on gate. KA noted concerns on the necessity of gate renovation considering the
currently mild unalignment, suggested work on hinges instead. TM suggested that
the motion for gate renovation and step renovation be considered together.

Step renovation. CB inquired on the necessity of prioritizing the proposed steps
over sidewalk steps. KA agreed on the importance of sidewalk steps but



prioritized the cemetery steps, considering the contributing gate. TM inquired on
archaeological methods employed in the project, considering proposed depth of
excavation. JG noted the importance of balancing community perspectives with
historic standards, as well as the appropriateness of extensive time and planning,
considering the hallowed nature of the site. TM agreed. CB inquired on the
feasibility of grant acquisition of project. KA recommended consulting with the
state preservation office. TM agreed, emphasized that the site will be an example
for town preservation, recommended extensive planning be put to renovation. TM
asked if the town would be willing to withdraw application. Confirmed by Mayor
Gatz, Town withdrew application, pending further study.

. Workshop Sessions: None.

Ongoing Business

Comments on the Heritage Education Plan- KA asked commissioners to review

SHPO comments. TM noted the need to communicate benefits of Historic District to
residents, suggested a webpage devoted to this. KA noted the importance of
expanding the curriculum component of the plan. JG concurred with TM’s suggestion
of clear communication with town, suggested that the commission specify expected
deliverables. AR suggested deeper collaboration with Mills Group, suggested inviting
Mills Group to next meeting. KA suggested meeting again within the month.

Mills Group Survey - status of survey is still unknown.

New Business

Presentation of letter from David Abbruzzi — AR will invite Abbruzzi to next
meeting.

Evaluation of Shepherdstown CLG — pursuant to the SHPO request, the town will
obtain resumes and credentials of previous HLC committee members and data on
attendance. KA requested assistance with the process.

Adjournment: TM moved to adjourn at 7:41 p.m. AR seconded. All in favor. None
opposed. Passed.




Application for Sign Permit
104 N King St

PO Box 248 (for mailing)

Shepherdstown, WV 25443

This application needs to be submitted to Town Hall for approval of any signage. Please reference Title
9, Section-210.

Name of applicant: j;("/Q\A 69\ /‘/\@ [ B {09” Mf“/;'}'fffoxﬂeﬂ/\

(include name of business)

225 010/ /%f&w/) FL
Fealneysv.ll < WV zs5430

City State Zip

ST-3E-TUS eman M) Sol<l cafedqamail corm
Street address of proposed work: / 0 / W- Gelr AN
il Email: M//TS r/t” /(\[A}Ctéaj'/"m‘/ Ccolr

Mailing address:

Telephone:

Telephone:

Prior to your application being accepted you are required to provide the following:
(Please initial each indicating it has been provided)

Total square footage of all existing signs on building

Linear width of storefront in feet

Total square footage of proposed sign(s)

Drawing or picture of building showing placement of sign(s)

Drawing or picture of sign(s) with dimensions & material composition
Drawing or picture of bracket or method of mounting sign

Hanging Sign(s) only:
Bottom of sign is required to be a minimum 7ft above sidewalk
Outer edge of sign may not extend closer than 3ft from curb face

%263 —(Co

| hereby certify that all information herein provided is true and accurate. | hereby authorize the inspection of
the above premises by authorized agents of the Shepherdstown Planning Commission at any reasonable time
to determine compliance with Commission’s approval. Application must be signed by owner or his/her agent.

Date: /é{/ [ / / 2/75 Signature:%—%\\

(Applicant)

If you are a tenant, you must obtain the owner’s signature acknowledging and approving the proposed work.
This must be done prior to submission of application.

Date: /Z/// %ng Signature: J\'MM% UW\ MO”(C

(Owner) <
. s >
Print Name: i .

[

Please reference Title 9 of Town Ordinance for specifics
Please contact Andy Beall with any questions. (304) 876-6858 ¢ abeall@shepherdstown.gov



“Juasuo) jdydxe Aw JnOYLM S{DRPIAIPUL 10 Sassausng
18440 Aq pasn aq jou ADw puD |Diuepijud a1p ‘lou Jo pazijouyy ‘19ays joosd siy uo subisap ay)

"MO[j10m uoidnpoid By uf JuaISYul SI01D 19410 PUD ‘UOKDIGID) Jojuow ‘sassarosd Buijuind
Ul saduaJajip of anp pnposd pajuiod jouyy ayy wouy AyyBiys A1oa Aow jeoys jooid ayj uo siojod ayj

M3aYd}I) MVauViLaLIpay ¥

0014

S¢/e0/¢l

AM ‘umojgspaaydays - woolg

woy-subisernjdiayjoayi@eunys
0619+6LC-V0E D

SNIDIS

adejd oY




SHEPHERDSTOWN HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION
Monday, December 8, 2025
6:00 p.m.,
TOWN HALL
104 NORTH KING STREET

In attendance: Commissioner Chair Keith Alexander (KA), Commissioner Tom Mayes (TM),
Commissioner Cheryl Brown (CB), Commissioner Ashley Reynolds (AR), Commissioner
Rebecca Bicker (RB), Town Administrator Gino Sisco, Intern Tabatha Delphi, Mayor James
Gatz (JG).

In absentia: None noted.

In audience: Jim Auxer (JA), Brannon Hamilton (contractor) (BH), Paul Farrell (211 E High),
Michael Nickerson (MN), Stephanie Unger.

1.

Call to Order: KA called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., made introductions of
commissioners, made introduction of new historic preservation intern, and explained
Roberts Rules Simplified.

Approval of Minutes: No changes noted, minutes approved as submitted.
Visitors:

Conflicts of Interest: None noted.

Applications:

25-38- 211 E High Street Renovations
Homeowner discussed project plan. Plan is to replace fencing and building shutters.

- Exterior Work- CB inquired about if the shutters are original to the building. BH
notes that the existing shutters are not but are so old that they are unrepairable.
TM inquired if they will be replaced in-kind with wood. BH says that the only
modification will be to lengthen the upper shutter, which do not currently fit
window length. KA moved to approve replacement of existing shutters in
accordance with Guidelines on PG 48 “Shutters”, Sections A-D. All in favor.
None opposed. Passed.

- Fence Permit Application- BH described the fence as semi-temporary, with the
proposed replacement 5’ tall, black aluminum, and 2”°x2” posts. KA noted the
necessity of considering the relative dimensions to the adjoining property. CB
asked about visibility between properties. BH noted that wooden fences are
visible against property, noted lack of cast metal availability for fencing. AR
noted that the interior and side placement of fence will have less impact on
historic integrity. TM inquired about height of fence, noting that zoning limits
fencing over 4’, raised issue of cast metal substitution. BH noted difficulties for




fence installation on specific terrain of 211 E High Street. JA recommended a
local blacksmith for the project. KA recommends that the commission considers
approving a recommendation to the planning commission that the homeowners
explore cast iron over proposed aluminum, as a preliminary step. TM raises wood
as an alternative, compatible with adjoining property. BH noted the need for
timely work but said that he will do further research. CB noted that the black
aluminum keeps visibility of adjoining mill property, more than wood. TM
inquired about the longevity and acceptability of proposed fence. BH noted that
the proposed fence is in use on historic properties elsewhere. Homeowner
inquired on whether the fence was in question or a specific side. KA confirmed
that the public-facing side was the priority. TM moved to recommend to the

planning commission that the installation of a 5° aluminum fence would not be
appropriate at this location and4nvited-the-contractorto-consult-withanother

gualified-fenee builderintown (as amended). AR asked for confirmation of
timeline. Homeowner notes proposed cast iron as prohibitively expensive. KA
notes that the priority is the proposed height and materials. BH confirms
feasibility of newly proposed height. KA proposes that TM rephrase his motion
based on newly proposed height. TM notes the importance of material continuity.
CB proposes that a temporary fence be installed until permanent change is made.
BH rejects feasibility of project, considering available labor and expense. CB
seconded motion by TM. All in favor. None opposed. Passed.

25-39 — 104 West New Street Shepherd Burial Ground Renovations

Representative from Historic Shepherdstown discussed the current project plan. Plan
is to renovate iron gate (gate and hinge, not posts) and stone foundation including
stone steps.

a. Gate renovation. KA inquires on visible impact of proposed solution. MN states

that none would be visible, other than an increased gap between gate doors which
would be necessary for function and for prohibiting further deterioration. TM
thanked MN for his continued commitment to the property, expressed concern on
cutting into the original materials of the gate, noted hinge is original, suggested
that a supportive base be inserted instead. MN stated that the proposed solution is
the most feasible, as other options are not cost-effective and would put strain on
contributing materials. MN noted the longevity of proposed solution. TM inquired
about stone step support, noted that proposed work on steps might alleviate strain
on gate. KA noted concerns on the necessity of gate renovation considering the
currently mild unalignment, suggested work on hinges instead. TM suggested that
the motion for gate renovation and step renovation be considered together.

Step renovation. CB inquired on the necessity of prioritizing the proposed steps
over sidewalk steps. KA agreed on the importance of sidewalk steps but



prioritized the cemetery steps, considering the contributing gate. TM inquired on
archaeological methods employed in the project, considering proposed depth of
excavation. JG noted the importance of balancing community perspectives with
historic standards, as well as the appropriateness of extensive time and planning,
considering the hallowed nature of the site. TM agreed. CB inquired on the
feasibility of grant acquisition of project. KA recommended consulting with the
state preservation office. TM agreed, emphasized that the site will be an example
for town preservation, recommended extensive planning be put to renovation. TM
asked if the town would be willing to withdraw application. Confirmed by Mayor
Gatz, Town withdrew application, pending further study.

. Workshop Sessions: None.

Ongoing Business

Comments on the Heritage Education Plan- KA asked commissioners to review

SHPO comments. TM noted the need to communicate benefits of Historic District to
residents, suggested a webpage devoted to this. KA noted the importance of
expanding the curriculum component of the plan. JG concurred with TM’s suggestion
of clear communication with town, suggested that the commission specify expected
deliverables. AR suggested deeper collaboration with Mills Group, suggested inviting
Mills Group to next meeting. KA suggested meeting again within the month.

Mills Group Survey - status of survey is still unknown.

New Business

Presentation of letter from David Abbruzzi — AR will invite Abbruzzi to next
meeting.

Evaluation of Shepherdstown CLG — pursuant to the SHPO request, the town will
obtain resumes and credentials of previous HLC committee members and data on
attendance. KA requested assistance with the process.

Adjournment: TM moved to adjourn at 7:41 p.m. AR seconded. All in favor. None
opposed. Passed.




	01.05.2026 HLC Agenda packet.pdf
	SKM_C300i25122211290.pdf

	HLC Draft Minutes December 2025.pdf



